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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council
City of Columbus
Columbus, Mississippi

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities,
each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund infortnation of the City of Columbus, Mississippi, as of and for the
year ended September 30, 2015, and the related notes to financial statements, which collectively comprise the City’s
basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the destgn, implementation, and
maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in
accardance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Thosc standards require that we
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditors
consider internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

Opinicen

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial
position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund
information of the City of Columbus, Mississippi, as of September 30, 2015, and the respective changes in financial
position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America.
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Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s discussion and
analysis, budgetary comparison information, schedule of City’s proportionate share of the net pension liability, and
schedule of the City’s contributions on pages 3-12 and 47-30 be presented to supplement the basic financial statements.
Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements
in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the
required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing
the information for consisteney with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other
knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any
assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an
opinion or provide any assurance.

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements that collectively comprise
the City of Columbus, Mississippi’s basic financial statements. The other supplemental information, as listed in the
table of contents, is presented for the purpose of additional analysis and is not a required part of the basic financial
statements.

The other supplemental information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to
the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. Such information has been
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional
procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directty to the underlying accounting and other
records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other
additional procedures in aceordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our
opinion, the other supplemental information is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial
statements as a whole,

Columbus, Mississippi

May 18, 2016 watin Ward and &Il“&t’, UL
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CITY OF COLUMBUS, MISSISSIPPI
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Required Supplementary Information for the Year Ended September 30, 2015

This section of the City of Columbus’s Financial Report presents our discussion and analysis of the City’s financial
performance during the fiscal year ending September 30, 2015, Please read it in conjunction with the City of Columbus’ :

financial statements, which follow this section.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

The City has adopted the provisions of Government Auditing Standards Board Statement No. 34,

The assets of the City exceeded its liabilities at the close of the inost recent fiscal year by $73,758.666. Of this
amount $6,355,719 may be used to meet the City of Columbus’ ongoing obligations 1o citizens and creditors,
The £(14,260,044) of unassigned net position shown on the statement of net position includes a $20.615,763
reduction in net position as a result of GASB No. 68, which requires employers to disclose their share of the
plan’s unfunded pension liability. The plan is administered by PERS of Mississippi.

As of the close of the current fiscal year, the City of Columbus governmental funds reported combined ending
fund balances of $13,799.718, a decrease of $5,126,854 in comparison to the prior year.

The City of Columbus’ total debt is $55,393,434 (exclusive of compensated absences). Of that total,
approximately $23,622,113 of debt was issued for governmental fund capital assets.

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

This annual report consists of four parts —management’s discussion and analysis (this section), the basic financial
statements, required supplementary information, and an optional xection that presenis a schedule of expenditures of
federal awards for non-major governmental funds and schedule of surety bonds for municipal officers. The basic
financial statements include two kinds of statements that present different views of the City of Columbus.

s The first two statements are governmeni-wide financtal statements that provide both long-term and short-term

information about the City of Columbus’s overall financial status. (Pages 15-16)

The remaining statements are fund financial statements that focus on individual parts of the City of Columbus’
operations in more detatl than the government-wide statements.

The Governmental Funds statements tell how general government services such as public safety were financed in

the short term as well as what remains for future spending. The City of Columbus has four Governmental Fund
types: the General, Special Revenue, Debt Service and Capital Projects. (Pages 18-21)

Proprietary fund statements offer short- and long-term financial information about activities the government
operates in a similar manner as businesses, and include the Electric and Water Divisions, (Pages 22-24)
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CITY OF COLUMBUS, MISSISSIPP1
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
Fiduciary fund statements are used to account for the resources held for the benefit of parties outside the City.
Fiduciary funds are not reflected in the government-wide financial statements because resources of those funds are

not available to suppert the City’s own programs. {Pages 25, 26)

The financial statements also include notes that explain some of the information in the financial statements and
provide more detailed data. (Pages 27-46)

Figure A-1 summarizes the major features of the City of Columbus® financial statements, including the portion of
the City of Columbus they cover and the types of information they contain. The remainder of this overview section

of management’s discussion and analysis explains the structure and content of each of the statements,

Figure A-1

Major Features of the City of Columbus’ Governmental-wide and Fund Financial Statements

Fund Statements

Gowmment (except
fiduciary funds) and
the City's component
units

that are not proprietary or
fiduciary. such as Police,
Fire, and Public Waorks

operates similar to
private businesses;
Electric and Water
Departments

Governme nt-wide Governmental Proprietary Fiduciary
Statements Funds Funds Funds
Scope Entire City The activities of the City Activities the City To account for

resources held for the
benefit of others

Required financial
statements

Statement of Net
Position; Staterment
of Activilies

Balance Sheet;
Statement of Revenues,
Expenditures, and
Changes in Fund
Balances

Statement of Fund Net
Position; Statement of
Revenues, Expenses,
and Changes in Fund
Net Position,
Statement of Net Cash
Flows

Statement of Net
Position; Statement
of Changes in Net
Position

Accounting basis and
measurement focus

Accrual accounting
and economic
resources focus

Modified accrual
accounting and current
financial resources focus

Accrual accounting
and economic
resources focus

Accrual accounting

Type of asset/liability

All assets and
liabilities, both
financial and capital,
short-term and long-
term

Oniy assets expected to
be used up and liabilities
that come due during the
year or soon thereafter,

no capital assels included

All assets and
liabilities, both financial
and capital, short-term
and long-term

Only assets expected
to be used up and
liakbilities that come
due during the year or
soon thereafter, ne
capital assets
included

Type of infliow-outfiow
information

All revenues and
expenses during
year, regardless of
when cash is received
or paid

Rewenues for which cash
is received during or soon
after the end of the year,
expenditures when goods
or sendces hawe been
received and payments
are due during the year or

sooh thereafter

All revenues and
expenses during year,
regardiess of when
cash is received or
paid

All collections and
deductions during
year, regardless of
when cash is received
or paid
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CITY OF COLUMBUS, MISSISSIPPI

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Government-wide Statements

The government-wide statements report information about the City of Columbus as a1 whole using
accounting methods similar to those used by private-sector companies. The statement of nct position
includes all of the government’s assets and liabilities. All of the current year’s revenues and expenses are
accounted for in the statement of activities regardless of when cash is received or paid.

The two government-wide statements report the City of Columbus’ net position and how they have
changed. Net position-—the difference between the City of Columbus® assets and liabilitics—is one way
to measure the City of Columbus’ financial health or position.

s Over time, increases or decreases in the City of Columbus® net position are an indicator of
whether its financial health is improving or deteriorating, respectively.

e To assess the overall health of the City of Columbus, the reader should consider additional non-
financial factors such as changes in the City of Columbus’ property tax base.

e Governmental activities — Most of the City of Columbus’ basic services are included here, such as
police, fire, public works, agency appropriations, and general administration, Property taxes,
sales and use taxes, and state and federal grants finance most of these activities.

s Business-type activities — The City of Columbus charges fees to customers to help it cover the
costs of certain services it provides. The City of Columbus’ ¢lectric, water and sewer system
services are included here.

Fund Financial Statements

The fund financial statements provide more detailed information about the City of Columbus® most
significant funds—not the City as a whole. The “fund” level is where the basic untt of financial
organization and operation within the City of Columbus exists. Funds are accounting tools that are used
to keep track of specific sources of funding and spending for particular purposes. They are the basic
budgetary and accounting entities.

s Some funds are required by the state law and by covenants.

e The City Council establishes other funds to control and manage money for particular purposes or
to show that it is properly using certain taxes and grants,

RECEIVED
JUN 07 2016
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CITY OF COLUMBUS, MISSISSIPP!

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The City of Columbus has three kinds of funds:

s Governmental funds—Most of the City of Columbus® basic services are included in
governmental funds, which focus on (1) how cash and other financial assets that can readily be
converted to cash flow in and out, and (2) the balances left at year-end that are available for
spending. Consequently, the governmental funds statements provide a detailed short-term view
that help determine whether there are more or fewer financial resources that can be spent in the
near future to finance the City of Columbus® programs. Because this information does not
encompass the additional long-term focus of the governmental-wide statements, we provide
additional information at the bottom of the governmental funds statement, or on the subsequent
page, that explains the relationship (or differences) between them. The measurement focus of the
governmental funds is upon determination of financial position and changes in financial posttion
(sources, uses, and balance of financial resources) rather than upon net income determination.
These funds are maintained on a modified accrual basis of accounting (explained further in the
notes to the financial statements under “Summary of Significant Accounting Policies”). The
basic financial statements for governmental funds are the Balance Sheet and the Statement of
Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance. The City of Columbus utilizes four types

of goverminental funds: the General Fund, Special Revenue Funds, Debt Service Funds, and
Capital Project Funds,

s Proprietary funds-—-Services for which the City of Columbus charges customers a fee are
generally reported in proprietary funds. Proprietary funds, like the government-wide statements,
provide both long- and short-termt financial information. The City has only one type of
proprietary funds—enterprise funds. The City of Columbus® enterprise funds arc the same as its
business-type activities yet provide more detail and additional information, such as cash flows.
The measurement focus of proprietary funds is upon determination of net income, financial
position and change in financial position. These funds are maintained on the accrual basis of
accounting. The Statement of Net Position, Statement of Revenues, Expense and Changes in
Fund Net Position, and Statement of Cash Flows are all required statements.

Fidueiary funds—Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of
parties outside the City and are not available to support City programs. The City of Columbus
has three fiduciary funds that are presented on Pages 25 and 26 of this report.

Government-wide Financial Analysis
A comparative analysis of government-wide data is presented in Tables A-1 through A-4.

Net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government’s financial position, The City
of Columbus® assets exceeded liabilities by $73,758,666 ar the close of the most recent fiscal year,
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CITY OF COLUMBUS, MISSISSIPPI
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

A substantial portion, 181%, of the City’s governmental activities net position reflects its investment in
capital assets (such as land, buildings, machinery, equipment, and infrastructure), less any related debt
used to acquire those assets that are still outstanding. The City uses these capital assets to provide
services to citizens; however, these assets are not available for future spending. Although the City’s
investment in its capital assets is reported net of related debt, it should be noted that the resources needed
to repay this debt must be provided from other sources, since the capital assets themselves cannot be used
to liquidate these liabilities.

Table A-1
City of Columbus Net Position

(ovemmental Business-Type 2015 2014
Activities Activitics Taotal Total
Cash and Other Assets 11,222,182 28,930,458 40,152,640 48.898 258
Capital Asscts 48,973,577 84.745,263 133,718,840 128,725,840
Total Assets 60, 195,759 113,675,721 173,871,480 177,624.098
Deferred Outllows of Resources 3,264,527 1,935,718 5,200,243 244,288
Other Liabilities 1,861,463 12,403,277 14,264,740 14,600,028
Long-term Liabilities 46,897,359 42.308.568 89,205,927 57,465,191
Total Liahilities 48.758.822 54,711,845 103,470,667 72,065,219
Deferred Inflows ol Resources 712,432 1,129.960 1,842,392 45,431
Net Posilion:
Invested in Capital Assets
Net af Related Debt 25,351,464 53,143,200 78,494,664 71,879.688
Restricted 2,897,612 2,897,612 8,093,351
Unrestricted (14,260,044) 6,626,434 (7,633,610} 25,784,697
Total Net Position 13,989,032 59,769,634 73,758,660 105,757,736

Unrestricted net position of our business-type activities was $6,626,434 at the end of the current fiscal
year, These resources cannot be used to increase the net position surplus in governmental activities. The
City of Columbus generally can only use this net position to finance the continuing operations of the
business-type activities.

The following are significant current year transactions that have had an impact on the Statement of Net
Position:

e Increases of $24,083,347 and $7,657,389 of long-term debt for Governmental and Business-Type
activities, respectively, due largely to GASB No. 68 as mentioned previously.

e Capital asset additions were $5,965.949 for Governmental activities. Capital asset reductions
were $972,949 for Business-Type activities.
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CITY OF COLUMBUS MISSISSIPPI

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Changes in net position. Approximately 11.0 percent of the City of Columbus’ revenue comes fram
property taxes, with 27.1 percent of all revenue coming from some type of tax. (See Table A-2). Another
69.9 percent comes from fees charged for services, and the balance is from operating and capital grants
and contributions and investment earnings.

Table A-2 and the narrative that follows consider the operations of governmental and business-type
activities separately.

Table A-2
Changes in the City's Net Position

Governmental Business-Type 2015 2014
Aclivities Aclivitics Total Tatal
Revenuce
Program Revenues:
Charges for Services s 3,905,784 49,456,996 53,366,780 55,151,711
Operating Grants & Centdbulions 08,179 908.179 697 667
Capital Grants & Contributions 845,305 845.305 533,528
General Revenues: -
Property Taxcs 8,448,936 8.448,936 8,741,162
Other Taxes 12,275,334 12,275334 11,450,269
[nvestment Income 26,177 22,673 48,850 62,281
Qther 300,197 79,423 469,622 71,126
Total Revenue 26,803,912 49,559,094 76,363,006 76,747,744
Expenses
General Government 2,457,713 2,457,713 2,431,655
Public Safety 11,362,232 11,362,232 10,513,816
Puhlic Warks 8,488,550 B 488,550 7,938.419
Urban & Economic Development 2,265,645 2,265,645 1,241,486
Cemetary 100,006 100,006 94 403
Garape 719,988 719,988 730.064
Agency Apprepriations 1,248,014 1,248,014 1,352,393
Culture & Recreation 565,857 563,857 1.057,705
[nterest on Debt 798,412 795.412 531,379
Water 10,119,050 10,119.050 10,060,427
Electric 40,243 989 40,243,989 40,325,847
Otheron Long-tenm Debt 22,652 22952 17,956
Total Lxpenscs 28,029,369 50,363,039 78,392,408 76,295,550
[nerease (Decreasc) in Net Position (1,225457) (803,945) (2,029,402) 452,194
Net Position - Beginning 39,348 696 66,409 (40 105,757,736 104,657,201
Prior Pericd Adjustmenl (19,715,663) (10,254,005) (29,969 668) -
Elimination af Intercompany Laans (4,418.544) 4,418,544 - -
Net Position - Ending % 13,989,032 59,769,634 73,758,666 103,109,395
RECEIVEDL
Jui 07 2016 ,
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CITY OF COLUMBUS

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Governmental Activities

Governmental activities decreased the City’s net assets by $1,225,457. Key elements of this are as
follows:

The largest funding sources for the City’s governmental activities, as a percent of total revenues,
are other taxes (45.8%) and property taxes (3 1.5%).

The largest expense categories for the City’s governmental activities are public safety (40.3%)
and public works (30.1%).

Business-Type Activities
Business-type activities decreased the City’s net assets by $803,945.

Charges for services are the major revenue categories for the enterprise funds, Revenue from services

totaled $49,456,996, 99.8% of the City’s Business-Type Revenues. Total business-type expenses are
comprised of $10,119,050 for water and sewer, $40,243,989 for electric.

Financial Analysis of the Government’s Funds

As noted earlier, the City uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-
related legal requirements,

Governmental Funds - The focus of the City’s Governmental Funds is to provide information on near-
term inflows, outflows, and balances of spendable resources. Such information is useful in assessing the
City’s financing requirements. In particular, unreserved fund balance may serve as a useful measure of
the City’s net resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal year.

General Fund - The General Fund {s the chief operating fund of the City. At the end of the current fiscal
year, the unreserved fund balance of the General Fund was $6,483,562. As a measure of the General
Fund’s liguidity, it may be useful to compare both the fund balance, reserved and unreserved, to total fund
expenditures. The fund balance of the City’s General Fund increased by $86,992 during the current fiscal
vear. These amounts do not account for the effects of the net pension liability discussed earlier.

Debt Service Fund — The Debt Service Fund has a total fund balance of $3,016,211, all of which is

reserved for the payment of debt service. The net increase in fund balance during the year in the Debt
Service Fund was §289,893,

Capital Projects Fund - The Capital Projects Fund accounts for the construction and reconstruction of
general public improvements, excluding projects related to business-type activities, which are accounted
for elsewhere. At the end of the current fiscal year, the fund balance was $788,359. The net decrease in
the fund balance during the current year in the Capital Projects Fund was $5,436,847.

Special Revenue Fund — The Special Revenue Fund is used to account for the programs and projects
primarily funded by grants from the federal and state governments. At the end of the current fiscal year,

no special revenue funds were available for future expenditures. The net change in the fund balance
during the current year in the Special Revenue Fund was zero.
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CITY OF COLUM BUS

MANAGEMENTS DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Proprietary Funds — The City’s proprietary funds provide the same type of information found in the
government-wide financial statements, but in more detail. The net assets of the Proprietary Funds at the
end of the current fiscal year totaled $59,769.634. Changes in net assets, which decreased by $803,945,
were as follows: the Electric Fund decreased by $1,224,678 and the Water & Sewer Fund increased by
$420,733

Budgetary Highlights

The City’s annual budget, which is prepared on an operating basis, included estimated revenues and
annual appropriations for the Governmental Funds. The total 2014-2015 operating budget charges
amounted to $29,487,835.

The City’s total tax millage rate for the 2015 fiscal year was 41.23 mills. The breakdown of the millage
rate is General Fund 30.25 mills, Police and Firemen’s Retirement 5.67 mills, and Special Assessment
5.31 mills.

CAPITAL ASSET AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION

Capital Assets — [n accordance with GASB 34, the City has recorded depreciation expense assoctated
with all of its capital assets, including infrastructure. The City’s investment in capital assets for
governmental and business-type activities as of September 30, 2015, amounted to $133,718,840, net of
accumulated depreciation of $135,424,306. This investment in capital assets includes land, buildings,
improvements other than buildings, machinery and equipment, infrastructure, and construction in
progress.

Table A-3
City of Columbus Capital Assets

Governmental Business-Type 2015 2014
Activitics Activities Total Total
Land 5 6,540,316 305,927 6,846,243 6,846,243
Buildings 18,216,608 18,216,608 18.203,595
lmprov, Other Than Buildings 1,825,189 1,825,189 1,825,189
Light & Water Plant 165,183.658 165,183,658 139,488,439
Machinery & Equipment 11,044,164 11,044,164 10,250,997
Infrastructure 58,144,410 58,144,410 57,040,361
Construction-in-Progress 6,725,683 1,157,191 7,882.874 4,969,501
Accumulated Depreciation (53,522,793 (81,901,513) {135,424 306) {129,898 985)
Total $  48973.577 84,745,263 133,718,840 128,725 840
11
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CITY OF COLUMBUS
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Long-Term Debt — At year-end, the City had $59,811,978 in bonds and notes outstanding. More

detailed information about the City of Columbus’ long-term liabilities is presented in the notes to the
financial statements,

Table A-4
City of Columbus Quistanding Debt

Governmental Business-Type 2015 2014
Activitics Activities Total Total
General Obligation Bands b 5,720,000 5,720,000 5,960,000
Special Assessment Bonds 9,530,000 9,530,000 10,315,000
TiF Bonds 2,230,000 2,230,000
Long-term Debt and Lease
Obligations 5,606,404 5,606,404 5,404,370
Revenue Bonds (Water Division) 3,772,471 3,772.47 4,540,826
Special Ob Bonds (Water Division) 18,617,599 18,617,599 20,122,402
Orther Long-term Debt (Water &
Electric Divisions) 13,799,795 13,799,793 14.250,618
Capital Improvement FLoans 335,709 535,709 650.025
Total § 23,622,113 36,189,865 50,811,978 61,243 241

ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR’S BUDGETS AND RATES

The City considered current year operational expenses and estimated increases based on economic factors
when establishing the fiscal year 2015 budget. The total budgeted appropriation for the City operations in
the governmental activities is $34,448,049 (which includes $24,336,751 in the general fund).

CONTACTING THE CITY OF COLUMBLUS
FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT

This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, customers, investors, and creditors
with a general overview of the City of Columbus® finances and to demonstrate the City’s accountability
for the money it receives. If you have any questions about this report or need additional financial

information please contact the City of Columbus’s Secretary-Treasurer, Post Office Box 1408, Columbus,
MS 39703,
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BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The basic financial statements include integrated sets of financial statements as required by the GASB. The
sets of statements include:

s  Government-wide financial statements
+ Fund financial statements:
— Qovernmental funds
— Proprietary (enterprise) funds
~— Fiduciary funds

in addition, the notes to the financial statements are included to provide information that is essential to the
user’s understanding of the basic financial statements.
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GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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CITY OF COLUMBUS, MISSISSIPPI
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

SEPTEMBER 30, 2015
Primary Government
Governmental Rusiness-type
Activities Activities Totals
ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalents 5 8,993 944 13,445,791 22,439,735
Investments, Restricted 3,960.837 3,96{.837
Receivable, Net 669.340 6,357,509 7.026,849
Property Tax Receivable 124.757 124,757
Landfill Reccivable [4,489 14,489
Intergovernmental Receivable 1,275.246 1,275,246
Fines Receivable 52,000 52,006
Inventory 728,255 728.255
Prepaid Expense 187,561 187.561
Notes Reccivable 92,400 92.400
Other Asscls 4,250,505 4,250,505
Capital Assets:
Land and Construction in Progress 13,265,999 1.463,118 14,729,117
Other Capital Assets, Net of Depreciation 35,707,578 83,282,145 118,989,723
Total Assets 60,195,759 113,675,721 173,871,480
DEFERRED QUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Bond Issuance Costs 439,852 756,609 1.196,501
Difference Between Expected and Actual
Cxpericnee - Net Pension Liability 2,824,635 1,179.109 4,003,744
Total Deferred Outflows of Resources 3,264.527 1,935,718 5,200,245
LIABILITIES
Aeccounts Payable and Aecrued lixpenses 1,704,008 8.825,303 1{:.529.313
Customer Deposits 3.443.280 3.443.280
Other |.iabilities 157,455 134,692 292,147
Long-term Liabilities:
Due Within One Year 1,870,102 3,009,425 4,879,527
Due in More than One Ycar 22.258.045 28,761,896 51.019,941
Unlunded Pension Liability 22,769.212 10.537.247 33,306.459
Total Liab:lities 48,758,822 354,711,845 103,470,667
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Bond Premiums 41,246 154,731 195,977
Difference Between Projeeted and Actuz] Earnings
on Pension Plan Investinents - Net Pension Liability 671,186 968,178 1,639,364
Other 7.051 7,051
Total Deferred Inflows of Resources 712,432 1,129,960 1,842,392
NET POSITION
Tnvested in Capital Asscts, Net of Related Debt 25351,464 53,143.200 78,494,664
Restricted for:
[Expendable:
Capital Improvements 788,359 788,359
City-based Activities 1,511,586 1,511,586
Debt Scryviec 397.667 597,667
Unrestricted - Unassigned ~ (14,260,044) 6,626,434 - (7,633.610)
Total Net Position $ 13,989,032 59,769,634 73,758,666

The accompanying notes te finaneial statements are an integral [,I)a_rt of these financial statements.
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CITY OF COLUMBUS, MISSISSIFPI
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2015

Program Revenues

Charges Operaling Capital Net
for Grunts and Granis und {Expense /
Functions/Program. _Expenages Services Contribution: Contribution: Revenue)
Primary Governmen
Goverminental Activiues
General Government 3 24537713 642,098 146,385 (1,669,230}
Public Safety 11,362,232 833,766 69,550 185988 (10,252.928)
Pubtic Works 8,488,550 2,250,250 (92,244 162.885 {5,383.171)
Cemelery 100,006 61,485 {38.521)
Culwure and Recreation 565,857 102,185 225,000 (238,672)
Conservation, Urban and Fconomic Developiient 2,265,645 271,432 (1,994,213
Intergovernmental Garage 719,988 (719,988
Agency Appropriations 1,248,014 (1,248,014)
Interest on Long-lerm Debt 798,412 {798 412)
Other on Long-term Debt 22,952 (22,9523
Total Governimental Aclivities 28,029,369 3,909,784 908,179 845,105 ~ (22.3060,101)
Business-type Activities
Electrie 40,241 989 18,954 991 (1,278.998)
Water 10,119,050 10,492,005 372,933
Total Business-tvpe Activities 50,363,019 49.456,996 - - {906,041)
Tatal Pnimary Governinent 1 78,392 4108 53 366,780 908,179 845,305 (23,272,144)
Governmenta Business-type
Activities Activilies Totul
Chanpes in Net Position:
Net (Lixpense) / Revenue 5 (22,360,101} {906,043) [23,272.144)
General Revenues
Taxes
Property Taxes 8,448,936 8448936
Sales and Use Taxes 9,350.339 9.350,339
Other Taxes 2,924,995 2,924,995
Grants and Conliribntions not Restricted to Specific Programs
Invesiment [neoine 26,177 22,673 48,850
Other 390,197 79425 465,622
Total (reneral Revenucs 21,140,644 102.098 21,242,742
Change in Net Position (1,225.437) {B13,945) (2,029,402}
Net Position, October 1, 2014 39.348.696 60,409,040 105,757,736
Prior Period Adjustment (19,715,663) (10,254,005} {29,960,6068)
Elimination of Inlercompany l.oans (4,418,544) 4,418,544 -
Net Position, Septemher 30, 2015 5 13,989,032 59,769 634 71,758 666

The accompanying notes to financial statements are an integral part of thesc financial statements.
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FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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CITY OF COLUMBUS, MISSISSIPPI
BALANCE SHEET - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

SEPTEMBER 30, 2015
Non-Major Total
Governmental Governmental
General Eunds Funds
ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalents S 6,103,213 2,890,731 8,693,044
Property Tax Receivable 116,711 8,046 124,757
Landfill Receivable 14,489 14,489
Intergovernment Receivables 924,150 151,096 1,275,246
Loans Receivable 92,400 4,418,544 4,510,944
Fines Receivable 52,006 52,006
Other Receivables 607,013 62,327 669,340
Due from Other Funds 34,175 - 34,175
Total Assets 5 7,944,157 7,730,744 15,674,901
LIABILITIES
Accounts Payable 3 1,284,248 419,760 1,704,008
Due to Other Funds - 34,175 34,175
Compensated Absences 137,000 137,000
Total Liabilities 1,421,248 453,935 1,875,183
FUND BALANCES
Restricted for:
Capital Improvements 788,359 788,359
Debt Service 5,016,211 5,016,211
Other Commitments 1,472,239 1,472,239
Assigned 39,347 39,347
Unassigned 6,483,562 6,483,562
Total Fund Balances 6,522,509 7,276,809 13,799,718
Total Liabilities and Fund Balances 3 7,944,157 7,730,744 15,674,901

The accompanying notes to financial statements are an integral part of these financial statements.
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CITY OF COLUMBUS, MISSISSIPPI

RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS BALANCE SHEET TO THE STATEMENT OF

NET POSITION
SEPTEMBER 30, 2015

Fund Balances - Total Governmental Funds

Amounts reported for governmental activities in Statement of Net Position are different because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources
and therefore are not reported in the funds:

Governmental capital assets
Less accumulated depreciation

Long-term liabilities and related accrued interest are not due and
payable in the eurrent period and therefore are not reported in the funds:
Long-Term Liabilities

Accrued interest payable

Deferred Outflows of Resources

Deferred Inflows of Resources

Receivables from consolidating entities must be eliminated on the
Statement of Net Position
Notes Receivable

Net Position of Governmental Activities

The accompanying notes to financial statements are an integral part of these financial statements.
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13,799,718
102,496.368
(53,522,791 48,973,577
(46,760,359)
(157,455)
3,264,527
(712.432) (44,365,719)
(4,418,544) (4,418,544)
13,989,032




CITY OF COLUMBUS, MISSISSIPPI
STATEMENT OF REVENLES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCES - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2015

Non-Major Totat
Governmental  Governmental
(i eneral Funds Funds
REVENLUES
Property Taxes $ 7,229,330 1,219,408 §,448,935
Licenses and Permits 622,622 622,622
intergovernmental Revenues 10,555,784 3,687.433 14,243,217
Charges for Governmental Services 2,319,307 128,629 2.447 936
Fines and Forfeits 675,154 2.650 677,804
Interest Income 23,101 3.076 26,177
Other Revenues 292,131 435 090 337,221
Total Revenues 21,717,629 5,086,283 26,803,912
EXPENDITURES
Current:
General Government 2,443,408 2,443,408
Public Safety 10,649,364 238,328 10.887,892
Public Works 4,830,091 6,803,766 11.633.857
Cemetery 100,006 100,006
Culture and Recreation 331,350 1,734,700 2,066,050
Conservation, Urban and Economic Development 964,918 2,421,456 3,386,374
Intergovernmental-Garage 700,324 700,324
Agency Appropriations 1,248,014 1,248,014
Debt Service:
Principal 507,773 1,053,612 1,561,385
Interest 32,826 719,358 752,184
Paying Agent Fees 5,375 5,375
Total Expenditures 21,808,074 12,976,795 34,784,869
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over
{Under) Expenditures {90,445) (7,890,512 (7,980,957)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Proceeds of Debt 234,864 2,619,239 2,854,103
Transfers from Other Departments 509,813 741,224 1,251,037
Transfers to Other Departments - (741,224) (509,813) {1,251,037)
Net Other Financing Sources 3,453 2,850,650 2,854,103
Net Change in Fund Balances (86,992) (5,039,862) (5,126,854
Fund Balances, October 1, 2014 6,609,901 12,316,671 18,926,572
Fund Balances, September 30, 2015 $ 6,522,909 7,276,809 13,799,718

The accompanying notes to financial statements are an integral part of these financial statcments.
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CITY OF COLUMBUS, MISSISSIPPI
RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS STATEMENT OF REVENLES,
EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
SEPTEMBER 30, 2015

Net Change in Fund Balances - Total Governmental Funds % (3,126,854)

Amounts reported tor governmental activities in Statement of Activities are
different becausc:

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures.
However, in the Statement ol Activities, the cost ol those
assets is depreciated over their estimated useful lives:

Expenditures for capital asscls 7.367.124
Less current year depreciation {1.644,315) 5.722.809

Bond and loan proceeds provide current financial resources to governmental
funds, but issuing debt increases long-term liabilitics in the statement of net
position. Repayment of borrowed prineipal is an expenditure in the
governmental funds, but the repayment reduces long-term liabilities in the
statement of net position. This is the amount by which proceeds exceeded

repayments:
Bond and loan procecds {2.854,103)
Principal payments 1,561,385 (1,292,718)

Some expenscs reported in the statement of activities do not require the use
of current financial resources and therefore arc not reported as cxpenditures in
governmental funds:

Change in unfunded pension liability (656,960)
Change in long-term compensated absences (21.417)
Change in accrued interest payahle {48,671
Change in deferred outflows of resources (17.884)
Changc in deferred inflows of resources 2,750 {742,182)

Issuance cost of bonds is an cxpenditure in the governmental funds for the year
in which the bonds are issued. The issuance eost is amortized over the life of
the bonds in the government-wide financial statements:

Issuance cost of bonds issued in current year 213,188 213,488
Change in Net Position of Governmental Fund: $ (1.225.457)
The accompanying notes to financial statements are an integral part of these financial statements. REC E IVE D

JUN rﬂl? ..-;iﬁ
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CITY OF COLUMBUS, MISSISSIPPI
STATEMENT OF FUND NET POSITION - PROPRIETARY FUNDS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2015

June 30,2015 September 30, 2015

Total
Electric Water Enterprise
Department Department Funds
ASSETS
Current Assets:
Cash and Cash Equivalents % 10,192,077 3,253,714 13445791
Receivables, Net 3,432,445 925064 6.357.509
Inventory 565,526 162,729 728255
Prepaid Expense 39,422 128,139 187,561
Totat Current Assets 16,249,470 4,469,646 20,719,116
Non-curreni Assets:
Restricled Investments 3,960,837 3,960,837
Capital Assets:
Fixed Asscts, Net of Depreciation 25,424,459 39,320,804 84,745,263
Other Assets 4,250,505 4,250,305
Total Non-current Assets 20,674,964 63,281,641 92,956,605
Total Asscts 45924.434 - 67,751,287 113,675,721
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Unamortized Debt Expense 183,908 372,701 756,609
Difference Between Expected and Actual Experience
- Net Pension Liabihity 557.690 621419 1,179,109
Total Deferred Qutflows of Resourees 741,598 1,194,120 1935718
Total Assets and Deferred Qutflows of Resources 46,666,032 68,945 407 115611439
LIABILITIES
Current Leabilities:
Accounts Payable and Accrued Expenses 7.431,908 890,262 R.322.170
Customer Deposils 3.119.003 324277 3,443 280
Interest Payable 168,715 334,420 503,135
Bonds, Notes and Loans Payvable 558 587 2833334 3,391,921
Total Current Liabilities 11,278,213 4,382,293 15,660,506
Non-current Liabifities:
Bonds, Notes and Loans Payable 3,413,451 24,384,463 32.797.944
Unfunded Pension Liability 5,601,638 4,935,609 10,537,247
Advances [rom Others 134,692 134,692
Tolal Nen-current Liabilitics 14,149 81} 29,320,072 43,469 883
Total Liabilitics 25428024 33,702,365 59,130,389
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Unamortized Gain on Bond Defeasance 154,731 154,731
Difference Between Projected and Actual Eamnings on
Pension Plan investmems - Net Penston Liability 811,969 156,179 96K, 178
Other 551 6,500 7051
Total Deferred Inflows of Resources 812,550 317410 1,129.960
NET POSITION
Invested 1n Capital Assets. Net of Related Debt 16,569.541 32,155,115 48.724.656
Unrestrieted 3855917 2,770,517 6,626,434
Total Net Position 20425,458 34925632 55,351,090
Total Liabilities, Deterred Inflows of Resources
and Net Position $ 46,666,032 68,945,407 115611,439

The accompanying neles te {inancial statements are an integral pact of these linancial statements.
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OPERATING REVENUES
Charges for Services

Tatal Operating Revenues

OPERATING EXPENSES
Purchased Power
Distribution Expense
Maintenance Expense
Water Treatment
Wastewater Treatment
Administralive and General
Dcpreciation

Total Operating Expenscs

Operating Income

CITY OF COLUMBUS, MISSISSIPPL
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN FUNDNET POSITION - PROPRIEFARY FUNDS

June 30, 2015

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPFTEMBER 30, 2015

September 30, 2015

Electric
Department

F  38964.991
38.964,9%1
32,106,760

448,352
},458.475

4,114,058
1,703,437

39,831,082

(866,091

NON-OPERATING REVENUES [EXPENSES}

Interest and Investinent Income
Other Revenue
Interest Expense
Other Expenses
Total Non-operaling Expenses
Income Betore Contribwtions
Capital Contributions
Change in Net Posilion
Amorlization of Grants

Total Net Pasition, Beginniug

Prior Period Adjustment

Total Net Position, Beginning as Restated

Total Net Position, Ending

18971
35,349
(3%0,696)

(22211
(358,587)
(1,224.678}

(1.224.678)

27.566.431
(5,916,295)
21,630,136

$ 20,425,458

Water
Department

10,492,005

13,492,005

082,105
955,538
2.217.240
2217283
2,705,305
9.077.471
1,414,534
3,702
44,076

(957.861)
(83,718)

(993,801)
420,733
474,075
894,808

{474,075)

38,842.609
(4.317,710)
34,504,899

34,925,632

The accompanying notes to fiuancial statements are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Total
Enterprise
Funds
49,456,996
49,456,996
32,106,760
448.352
2,440,580
955,538
2.217.240
6,331.341
4,408.742
48,908,553
548,443
22,673
79,425
{1,348.557)
(103,929)
{1,352,388)
(803.945)
474,075
(329.870)
{474.073)
__66409.040

(10,254.003)

36,155,035

55,351,090




CITY OI' COLUMBUS, MISSISSIPFPI

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS - PROPRIETARY FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEFTEMBER 30, 2015

Cash Flows From Operating Activities
Cash Received from Customers
Cash Paid to Emplovees
Cash Paid to Suppliers
(ash Paid to City
Net Cash Flows from Operating Activities

Cash Flows from Noncapital Financing Activities
Customer Conservation and TYA Loan Activity
Deerease in Conservation Advances
Interest Paid
Other Receipls
Net Cash Flows from Noncapital Finaneing Activities

Cash Flows from Capital and Related Financing Activities
Payments on Debt
Payment of Interest
Purchase of Capital Asscts
Other Receipls
Net Cash Flows from Capital and Related
Financing Activities

Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Rececipt of Interest

Increase in Bond Sinking Funds
Decrease in Other Special Funds
Net Cash Flows from Investing Activities

Net Change in Cash
Cash and Cash Equivalents, Beginning of Year
Cash and Cash Equivalents, FEnd of Year

Reconciliation of Operating Income to Net Cash Flows
[rom Operating Activities:
Operating Income
Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Income
to Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities:
Depreciation & Amortization
Changes in Operating Assets and Liabilitics:
(In¢rease) Decrease in Receivables
Decrease in Inventory
[nerease in Prepaid Expenscs
Decrease in Payables
Decrease in Accrued Liabilitics
Increase in Customer Deposits
Increase (Deercase) in Other Liabilities
Total Adjustments
Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities

June 30, 2015 September 30, 2015
Total
Electric Water Enterprise
Department Department Funds

$ 39,140,874 10,432,521 49,573,395
(1.594,001) (2,072,688) (3,666.689)
(34,164,799) (4.280.274) (38,445,073)
(1.818,750) (L818.750)
1,563,324 4,079,559 5,642,883
32,650 32,690
(32.980) {32.980)
(3.468) (3,468)

26,197 26,197

22,439 22439
(531.452) (2,292.368) (2.823,820)
(393.228) (984.066) (1.377.294)
(1,824,703) (1,718,554) (3.543,257)
140,428 140,428

(2,749.383) (4.854.560) (7.603,943)
18971 3.702 22673
(9,001) (9,001)

765,449 763.449
775419 3.702 779,121
(388,201} (771,299) (1.159,500)
10,580.278 4.025.013 14,605,291

$ 10,192,077 3,253,714 13,445,791
S (866,091 1.414.534 548.443
1,703,437 2,705,305 4,408.742
456,402 {61.409) 304,993

184,725 375 185,100

(2,177) {1.384) (3,56H)

(24) (124,382) (124,406)
(71.328) (71,328)

159.264 1,925 161,189

(884} 144,595 143,711

2,429,415 2,665,025 5,094,440

5 1,563,324 4,079,559 5,642,883

The accompanying notes to finanecial stalements are an intcgral part of these financial staterments.
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ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Receivables (Net)

Total Assets
LIABILITIES
Accounts Payable
QOther Liabilities

Total Liabilities

NET POSITION
Net Position

CITY OF COLUMBLUS, MISSISSIPPL

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION - FIDUCTARY FUNDS

SEPTEMBER 30, 2015
Employee Private-
Benefit Purpose Agency
Trust Fund Trust Funds
3 60,775 292909 459,845
8,895 10,824
69,670 292,909 470,669
14,738 68,502
468,188
14,738 68,502 468,188
b 54,932 224,407 2,481

The accompanying notes to financial statements are an integral part of these financial statements.
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CITY OF COLUMBLUS, MISSISSIPPI
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET POSITION - FIDUCIARY FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2015

ADDITIONS
Collections
Property Taxes
Total Collections

Total Additions

DEDUCTIONS
Payments to Other Governiments

Total Deductions
Change in Net Position
Net Position, October 1,2014

Net Position, September 30, 2013

Employee

Benefit

Trust Fund

972,762

972,762

972,762

974,724

974,724

{1,962)

56,894

54,932

The accompanying notes to financial statements are an integral part of these financial statements.
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NOTE 1:

CITY OF COLUMBUS, MISSISSIPPI
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of Presentation

The accompanying financial staterents of the City of Columbus {City) have been prepared in
conformity with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) as prescribed by the
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB). GASB is the accepted standard-setting
body for governmental accounting and financial reporting principles.

The Financial Reporting Entity

The citizens of Columbus, Mississippi, have elected to operate under a Mayor-City Council
form of government as permitted by Mississippi Statutes 2 [-8-1.

[n evaluating how to define the povernment, for financial reporting purposes, management has
considered all potential component units. The decision to include a potential component unit
in the reporting entity was made by applying the criteria set forth in GAAP. The basic - but
not the only - criterion for including a potential component unit within the reporting entity is
the governing body's ability to exercise oversight responsibility. The most signilicant
manifestation of this ability is financial interdependency. Other manifestations of the ability
1o exercise oversight responsibility include, but are not limited 1o, the selection of governing
authority, the designation of management, the ability to significantly influence operations.
and accountability for fiscal matters. A second criterion used in evaluating potential
component units is the scope of public service. Application of this criterion involves
considering whether the activity benefits the povernment and/or its citizens, or whcther the
activity is conducted within the geographic boundaries of the government and is generally
available to its citizens. A third criterion used to evaluate potential component units for
inclusion or exclusion from the reporting entity is the existence of special financing
relationships, regardless of whether the government is able to exercise oversight
responsibilities.

Based on the criteria above, the reporting entity for GAAP purposes includes the Columbus
Light and Water Department (Electric and Water Division). Both the Electric and Water
Divisions were audited separately and these reports may be obtained from each respective
administrative office.

There are no outside organizations that should be included as component units of the City’s
reporting entity.
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NOTE 1:

C.

CITY OF COLUMBUS, MISSISSIPP]
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Basic Financial Statements — Government-Wide Statements

The City’s basic financial statements include both government-wide (reporting the City as a
whole) and fund financial statements (reporting the City’s major funds). Both government-
wide and fund financial statements categorize primary activities as either governmental or
business type. The City’s public safety, public works, sanitary landfill, solid waste, care and
maintenance of public property, health and welfare, conservation, urban and economic
development, central garage and general government services are classified as governmental
activities. The City’s electric and water divisions are classified as business-type activities.

In the government-wide Statement of Net Position, both the governmental and business-type
activities columns are presented on a consolidated basis by column and are reported on a full
accrual, economic resource basis, which recognizes all long-term assets and receivables as
well as long-term debt and obligations. The City’s net position is reported in three parts —
invested in capital assets, net of related debt; restricted net position; and unrestricted net
position. The City first utilizes restricted resources to finance qualifying activities.

The government-wide Statement of Activities reports both the gross and net cost of each of
the City’s functions and business-type activities {police, fire, public works, etc). The
functions are also supported by general government revenues (property. utility, sales and use
taxes, certain intergovernmental revenues, revenues, fines, permits and charges, etc.). The
Statement of Activities reduces gross expenses {including depreciation) by related program
revenues, operating and capital grants., Program revenues must be directly associated with the
function {police, fire, etc.) or a business-type activity. Operating grants include operating-
specific and discretionary (either operating or capital) grants while the capital grants column
reflects capital-specific grants.

The net costs {by function or business-type activity) are normally covered by general revenue
{property, sales or use taxes, intergovernmental revenues, interest income, etc.).

The government-wide focus is more on the sustainability of the City as an entity and the
change in the City’s net position resulting from the current year’s activities.

Basic Financial Statements — Fund Financial Statements

The financial transactions of the City are reported in individual funds in the fund financial
statements. Each fund is accounted for by providing a separate set of self-balancing accounts
that comprises its assets, liabilities, fund balance, revenues, and expenditures/expenses. The
various funds are reported by generic classification within the financial statements.
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NOTE 1:

CITY OF COLUMBUS, MISSISSIPPI
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Governmental Funds

The focus of the governuimental funds’ measurement (in the fund statements) is based upon
determination of financial position and changes in financial position (sources, uses, and
balances of financial resources) rather than upon net income.

description of the governmental funds of the City:

a.

General Fund is the general operating fund of the City. It is used to account
for all financial resources except those required to be accounted for in
another fund.

Special Revenue Funds are used to account for the proceeds of specific
revenue sources {(other than special assessments, expendable trusts, or major
capital projects) that are legally restricted to expenditures for specified
purposes.

Debt Service Funds are used to account for the accumulation of resources
for, and the payment of general long-term debt principal, interest, and related
costs.

Capital Projects Funds are used to account for financial resources to be
used for the acquisition or construction of major capital facilities (other than
those financed by business-type/proprietary funds)

Proprietary Funds

The focus of proprietary fund measurement is upon determination of operating income,
changes in net position, financial position, and cash flows.
accounting principles applicable are those similar to businesses in the private sector. The

following is a description of the proprietary funds of the City:

a.

Enterprise Funds are used to account for operations (a) that are financed and
operated in a manner similar to private business enterprises - where the intent of the
governing body is that the costs of providing goods or services to the general public
on a continuing basis be financed or recovered primarily through user charges; or (b)
where the poverning body has decided that periodic determination of revenues
earned, expenses incurred, and/or net income is appropriate for capital maintenance,

public policy, management control, accountability, or other purposes.

RECEIVED
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CITY OF COLUMBUS, MISSISSIPPI
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED}

3.

Fiduciary Funds

Fiduciary funds are used to report assets held in a trustee or agency capacity for others
and therefore are not available to support City programs. The reporting focus is on net
position and changes in net position and is reported using accounting principles similar to
proprietary funds.

The City’s fiduciary funds are presented in the fiduciary fund financial statement by type
{employee benefit and agency). Since by definition these assets are being held for the
benefit of a third party (other local governments, private parties, pension participants,
ete.) and cannot be used to address activities or obligations of the government, these funds
are not incorporated into the government-wide statements.

e Basis of Accounting

Basis of accounting refers to the point at which revenues or expenditures/expenses are
recognized in the accounts and reported in the financial statements. It relates to the timing of
the measurements made regardless of the measurement focus applied.

Accrual:

Both governmental and business-type activities in the povernment-wide financial
statements and the proprietary and fiduciary fund financial statements are presented on
the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized when earned and expenses are
recognized when incurred.

2. Modified Accrual:
The governmental funds financial statements are presented on the modified accrual basis
of accounting. Under the modified accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recorded
when susceptible to accrual; i.e., both measurable and available. “Available” means
collectible within the current period or within 60 days after year end. Expenditures are
generally recognized under the modified accrual basis of accounting when the related
liability is incurred. The exception to this general rule is that principal and interest on
general obligation long-term debt, if any, is recognized when due,

f. Financial Statement Amounts
1. Cash and Cash Equivalents:

For purposes of the statement of cash flows for the proprietary funds, the City defines
cash equivalents as short-term, highly liquid investments with original maturity dates ol
three months or less.
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NOTE I:

CITY OF COLUMBUS, MISSISSIPPI
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.

Inventory:

Inventory is valued at the lower of cost (first-in, first-out) or market,

Capital Assets:

Capital assets are reported at historical cost or estimated historical cost. Contributed
assets are reported at fair market value as of the date received. Additions, improvements
and other capital outlays that significantly extend the useful life of an asset are
capitalized. Other costs incurred for repairs and maintenance are expensed as incurred.
Depreciation on all assets is provided on the straight-line basis over the following
estimated useful lives:

Buildings 40 years
Improvements other than buildings 20 years
Mobile equipment 5-10 years
Furniture and equipment 5—10 years
Other infrastructure 20 - 30 years
Leased property under capital leases * years

{*) The useful lives will correspond with the amounts for the asset classifications, as
listed.

Fund Balances

Fund balance for governmental funds is reported in classifications that comprise a
hierarchy based primarily on the extent to which the government is bound to honor
constraints on the specific purposes for which amounts in those funds can be spent.

Governmental fund balance is classified as restricted, assigned or unassigned.
Following are descriptions of fund classifications used by the City:

Restricted fund balance includes amounts that have constraints placed upon the use of
the resources either by an external party or imposed by law through a constitutional
provision or enabling legislation.

Assigned fund balance includes amounts that are constrained by the City’s intent to be
used for a specific purpose, but are neither restricted nor committed. For governmental
funds, other than the general fund, this is the residual amount within the fund that is not
restricted or committed. Assignments of fund balance are created by the city council
pursuant to authorization established by the City’s approved fund balance policy.
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NOTE I:

CITY OF COLUMBUS, MISSISSIPP}
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Unassigned fund balance is the residual classification for the general fund, This
classification represents fund balance that has not been assigned to other funds and that
has not been restricted, committed, or assigned to specific purposes within the general
fund. The general fund should be the only fund that reports a positive unassigned fund
balance amount. In other povernmental funds, it may be necessary to report a negative
unassigned fund balance.

When an expenditure/expense is incurred for purposes for which both restricted and
unrestricted (committed, assigned, or unassigned) resources are available, it is the city’s
general policy to use restricted resources first. When expenditures/expenses are
incurred for purposes for which unrestricted (committed, assigned, and unassigned)
resources are available, and amounts in any of these unrestricted classifications could
be used, it is the city’s general policy to spend committed resources first, followed by
assigned amounts, and then unassigned amounts,

Revenues:

Substantially all governmental fund revenues are accrued. Property taxes are billed and
collected within the same period in which the taxes are levied. Subsidies and grants to
proprietary funds, which finance either capital or current operations, are reported as
nonoperating revenue based on GASB No. 33. In applying GASB No. 33 to grant
revenues, the provider recognizes liabilities and expenses and the recipient recognizes
receivables and revenue when the applicable eligibility requirements, including time
requirements, are met. Resources transmitted before the eligibility requirements are met
are reported as advances by the provider and deferred revenue by the recipient.

Expenditures:

Expenditures are recognized when the related fund liability is incurred. Inventory costs
are reported in the period when inventory items are used, rather than in the period
purchased.

Compensated Absences:

The City accrues accumulated unpaid vacation and sick leave and associated employee-
related costs when earned (or estimated to be earned} by the employee. The noncurrent
portion {the amount estimated to be used in subsequent fiscal years) for governmental
funds is maintained separately and represents a reconciling item between the fund and
government-wide presentations.
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NOTE I:

CITY OF COLUMBUS, MISSISSIPPI
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

8.

9.

10,

Interfund Activity:

Interfund activity is reported as either loans, services provided, reimbursements or
transfers. Loans are reported as interfund receivables and payables as appropriate and are
subject to elimination upon consolidation. Services provided, deemed to be at market or
near market rates, are treated as revenues and expenditures/expenses. Reimbursements
are when one fund incurs a cost, charges the appropriate benefiting fund and reduces its
related cost as a reimbursement. All other interfund transactions are treated as transfers.
Transfers between governmental or proprietary funds are netted as part of the
reconciliation to the govemment-wide financial statements,

Basis of Budgeting:

The City follows these procedures in establishing the budgetary data reflected in the
financial statements:

1. Prior to September 1S, the CFO submits to the City Council a proposed operating
budget for the fiscal year commencing the following October 1. The operating
budget includes proposed expenditures and means of financing them.,

2. Public hearings are conducted at least one week prior to adoption of the budget in the
City Hall to obtain taxpayer comments.

3. Budgets for the General, Special, Capital Projects, and Debt Funds are adopted on the
cash basis.

Budgeted amounts are as originally adopted, or as amended by the City Council.

Self-insurance Reserves:

The City is self insured for medical coverage. Medical coverage is provided by a
combined fully-funded gap policy and self-funded major medical. The breakdown of
coverage is as follows:

Self-funded claims $500 - $50,000
Fully-funded excess coverage insurance $50,000 +

[nsurance reserves are calculated on an undiscounted basis based on actual claim data and
estimates of incurred but not reported claims developed utilizing historical ¢laim trends.
Projected settlements and incurred but not reported claims are estimated based on pending
claims, historical trends and data. Though the City does not expect them to do so, actual
settlements and claims could have an adverse effect on the results of operations and
financial condition.
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NOTE I:

NOTE 2:

NOTE 3:

CITY OF COLUMBUS, MISSISSIPPI
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

11. Use of Estimates:

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities
at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses
during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

CASH., OTHER DEPOSITS, AND INVESTMENTS

The collateral for public entities” deposits in financial institutions is held in the name of the
State Treasurer under a program established by the Mississippi State Legislature and is
governed by Section 27-105-5, Miss. Code Ann. (1972). Under this program, the entity’s
funds are protected through a collateral pool administered by the State Treasurer. Financial
institutions holding deposits of public funds must pledge securities as collateral against those
deposits. In the event of failure of a financial institution, securities pledged by that institution
would be liquidated by the State Treasurer to replace the public deposits not covered by the
Federal Depository Insurance Corporation.

The carrying amount ot the City's deposits with financial institutions was $9,807,473 on
September 30, 2015, and the bank balance was $10,026,275.

The water and light department balances are not included in the above amounts.

Custodial Credit Risk — Deposits. Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of the
failure of a financial institution, the City will not be able to recover deposits or collateral
securities that are in the possession of an outside party. The City does not have a formal
policy for custodial credit risk, However, the Mississippi State Treasurer manages that risk on
behalf of the City. Deposits above FDIC coverage are collateralized by the pledging financial
institution’s trust department or agent in the name of the Mississippi State Treasurer on behalf
of the City.

INTERFUND RECEIVABLES, PAYABLES AND TRANSFERS

[nterfund receivables and payables at September 30, 2015, are:

A. Due from/to other funds
Due from Due to
Other Funds Other Funds

General Fund $ 34,175

Other Governmental Funds 34,175

Total Funds $ 34,175 34,175
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NOTE 3:

NOTE 4:

CITY OF COLUMBUS, MISSISSIPPI
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

INTERFUND RECEIVABLES, PAYABLES AND TRANSFERS (CONTINUED)

The amounts due to or due from other funds primarily represent amounts loaned between
funds for timing differences between revenues and expenditures and cash balances.

B. Inter-fund Transfers

Transfer [n Transfer Qut
General Fund $ 509813 741,224
Other Governmental Funds 741.224 509,813

31,251,037  $1.251.037

All inter-fund transfers were routine and consistent with the activities of the fund making the
transfer.

NOTES RECEIVABLE

Notes Receivable balance at September 30, 2013, is a follows:

Date of InterestMaturity Balance
Description Loan Rate Date Pavable
American Power Source  9/1/09 3.00% 9/1/19 $92.400

On the Statement of Net Position, notes receivable from Columbus Light & Water in the
amount of $4,418,544 are eliminated in consolidation.
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NOTE 5:  CAPITAL ASSETS

CITY OF COLUMBLUS, MISSISSIPPI

NOTES TO THE FINANCIALSTATEMENTS

Capital asset activity for the year ended September 30, 2015, was as follows:

Governmental Activitics
Non-depreciable Capital Assets
Land
Construction in Progress
Total Non-depreciable Cupilal A ssels

Depreciable Capital Assets
Buildings
Equipment
Inprovements Other than Buildings
Infrastructure
Tuotal Depreeiable Capital Assels

Less Accumulared Depreciation far:
Buildings
Cquipmenl
Improvements Other than Buildings
Infrasiructure

Tolal Accumulated Depreciauion

Tolal Depreciable Capital Assets. Net

Governmental Activities Capital Assets, Net

Business-Type Activitics
Nen~lepreciable Capital Assers
Land
Consiruction in Progress
Total Non-depreciable Capital A ssels

Depreciable Capital Assets
Wastewater Treatment PlanL
Uthty Plant in Service
Distribution Plant
General Plant

Total Depreciable Capital Asscls

Less Accumulated Deprecintion for:
All Plam Property
Total Aceumulated Deprecialion

Total Depreciable Capital Assets, Net
Business-1ype Activities Capilal Assets, Nct

Balance Retire- Completed Balance

9/30,2004 Additions ments Covstruction  Adjustments 97307201 5
§ 6540316 6,340,316
968,302 6,875,125 (L1774 6,723,683
7,508,618 6,875,125 (1,117,744} 0 13,265,599
18,203,595 13,015 18216610
10,250,997 478,985 14,200 299983 11.044.165
1,825,189 1,825,189
57,040,861 1,103,544 58,144,405
87,320 642 497.000 1,117,743 200,983 £9.230,369
6,750,898 368,875 7,159,773
7743610 383,794 $6,843 8184247
284,577 73,008 357,585
37,002,547 818619 37,821,186
51,821,632 1644316 56,841 53,522.791
15,499,010 (1,152,316) 1,117,714 243,140 35,707,578
5 43007628 5,722,809 - 243,140 60 48,671.577
$ 105,927 305,927
4,001,199 1,637,388 14,481,396) 1,157,191
4,307,126 1,637,388 {4,481,396) 1,463,118
18,833,420 18,832,420
91,680.791 4302218 (379,301 G5,603.208
4(,645,806 1,775,226 (266,112) 43,154,920
7,328,122 376,457 (112,763) 7592110
159488439 5,453,901 (758,682) 165,183,658
78,077,353 4,781,026 (936,866) 81,901,313
78,077,351 4,781,026 {956 866) 0 81,501,513
81,411,086 1,672,875 198,184 - 0 83,282,145
85,718,212 3,110,263 198,184 (4481,396) 0 84,743,263
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CITY OF COLUMBUS, MISSISSIPPI
NOTES TO TIIE FINANCIALSTATEMENTS

NOTE 5: CAPITAL ASSETS { CONTINUED)

Depreciation expense was charged to functions as follows:

Amaoul
Governmental Activities:
General Government 13 34,534
Public Safety 301262
Public Works 953 BOS
Culture and Recreation |38.898
Conservatton, Urban and Economic Developmenl 215817
Tolal Depreciation Expense - Governmenial Activities 5 1,644,316
Business-Type Activities:
Electric Division < 1,861.567
Water [hvision 2919439
Total Depreciation Expense - Business- Type Aclivilics £ 4781026
NOTE 6: LONG-TERM LIABILITIES
Long-term liability activity Tor (he year ended Seplember 38, 2015, was as Lollows:
Balance Re- Bulance Within Onc
Governmental Activities 9/30/2014 Additions ductions Adjusitments 9/30/2015 Year
General Obligation Bonds
General Obligation Note, Series 2013 3 960,000 240,000 720,000 240,000
General Obligalion Note, Serics 2014 5,000,000 5,000,000
Special Assessmeol Bonds Payable
Public [Improvemenl Scries, 1996A 310,000 150,000 160,000 160,000
Public Improvement Series, 19968 125,000 50,000 65,000 65.000
Mississippi Development Bank, 2010 7.595.000 455,000 7,140,000 470,000
Mississippi Development Bank, 2013 2285000 120,000 2,163.000 125,000
Tax Increment Finaneing Bonds
Tax Increment Financing Bonds, Series 2015 2,230,000 2,230,000 80,000
Noles Payable
Mississip pi Development Authority, 1998 9758 9,758 - -
Mississip pi Development Awhoruy, 1999 4905 4,905 - -
Mississip pi Development Authority, 2007 115,383 31,059 84324 31,748
Mississippi Development Authority, 2007 65,705 17,138 52,570 17.516
Mississippi Development Authonty, 2012 184,082 24,073 160,009 24 588
Mississippl Development Authority, 2012 187,408 22877 164,531 21,566
Mississippi Development Authority, 2009 78.780 4,506 74,274 4,624
Regions Bank 138,089 50,884 87,203 51,958
Regions Bank, Lease Purchase Note 1,728,961 97,400 1,631,561 100,554
Regions Bank, Lecase Purchase Note 3,110,761 389239 140,153 1,359 847 191,841
Regions Bank, Lease Purchase Note 426,559 119,184 307,175 103,297
Regions Bank, Lease Purchase Nole £1,650 6,084 57,566 12,351
Regions Bank, Lease Purchase Note 171,214 8,163 163,051 33,059
Compensated Absences 484617 21417 506,014 137,000
Total $ 22814012 2,875,520 1,561,385 0 24,128,147 1,870,102
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CITY OF COLUMBUS, MISSISSIPPI
NOTES TO THE FINANCIALSTATEMENTS

NOTE 6: LONG-TERM LIABILITIES (CONTINUED}

Balance Re- Balance Within One
9/30/2014 Additions ductions 9/30/2015 Year
Business-type Activities
Bonds and Noles Payable - Water Division
Water Division, Special Obligation Bands
2007 Scries k) 20,100,000 1,333,000 18,765,000 1,390,000
Revenue Refunding Bonds
2012 Series 4795397 1,022,926 3,772,471 1,046,865
Discount on Special Obligation Bonds
Series 2007 (161,500) {14,499) {147,401)
Total Water Division, Revenue Bonds 24,733,497 - 2,343,427 22,390,070 2.436,865
Water Division, Other Long-Term Debt
Motes Payable to City of Columbus for
Water Meter Project 3,110,761 389.239 93,084 3406916 238,909
Envirenmental Qualily Revolving Loans 1,143,927 126,003 1.017.924 128,226
Department of Health Revolving Loans 354,789 23.699 331,090 24,165
Department ol Economie and Community 60,783 60.783 -
Mississippi Development Bank 76,8348 5,041 71,797 5169
Tolal Waler Division, Other Long-lerm Debi 4.747.098 389,239 215526 4,827,727 396,469
Bonds and Noles Payable - Eiectric Division
Electne Division - Special Obligation Bonds
2009 Series 8,520,000 400,000 8,120,000 415,000
Noates Payable to City of Columbus for
Construetion Expenses 1,192.396 145,300 1,047,096 143 587
Discount on Special Obligation Bonds
Series 2009 (208,876) {13,848) (193,028)
9,503,520 0 531,452 8,472,068 558,587
‘l'otal Business-type Activitics Bonds and
Notes Payable 3 38,984,115 389 239 3,090 405 16,189 865 3,391,921
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NOTE 6:

CITY OF COLUMBLUS, MISSISSIPPI
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

LONG-TERM LIABILITIES (CONTINUED)

All liabilities of The City of Columbus are secured by the full faith and credit of the
municipality.

The outstanding issue of general obligation bonds, series 2013, is due in annual installments
of $240,000 plus interest through the year 2018 with 1.52% annual interest.

The outstanding issue of general obligation bonds, series 2014, is due in annual installments
ranging from $163,403 to $638,938 through the year 2029 with 3.25% annual interest.

The outstanding issues of special assessment bonds are due in annual installments ranging
from $65,080 to $445,000 each through various dates, the last of which is the year 2030,
Interest rates range from 2.0% to 5.4%.

The notes payable with Mississippi Development Authority dated June 12, 2007, consist of
monthly payments in the amount of $2,760.40 for 120 months with 2.0% annual interest.

The notes payable with Mississippi Development Authority dated September 1, 2008, terms
consist of monthly paviments in the amount of $1,533.53 for 120 months with 2.0% annual
interest.

The notes payable with Mississippi Development Authority dated September (7, 2009, terms
consist of monthly payments in the amount of $505.88 for 240 months with 2.0% annual
interest.

The notes payable with Mississippi Development Authority dated February |, 2012, terms
consist of monthly payments in the amount of $2,300.34 for 120 months with 2.0% annual
interest,

The notes payable with Mississippi Development Authority dated August 5, 2010, terms
consist of monthly payments in the amount of $2,054.95 for 120 months with 2.0% annual
interest,

The notes payablc with Regions Bank dated May 17, 2012, terms consist ol monthly
payments in the amount of $4,440.40 for 60 months with 2.09% annual interest.

The outstanding notes payable with Regions Equipment Finance Corporation terms consist of
quarterly payments ranging from $37,891 to $72,705, or monthly payments ranging from
£1,115 to $3,000, the last of which is the year 2029. Interest rates range from 1.99% to
3.20%.
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NOTE 7:

NOTE 8:

CITY OF COLUMBLUS, MISSISSIPPI
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DISABILITY RELIEF FUND

In the past, the City has sponsored and administered the Policemen’s and Firemen’s Disability
Relief Fund. It was accounted for as a separate Pension Trust Fund. Effective July 1, 1987,
this fund was administered by the Public Employees’ Retirement Systemn of Mississippi
{PERS). All required contributions and property taxes are being transferred monthly. The
Pension Fund is funded by contributions from employees and from a tax assessment of 3.67
mills. The City is not obligated to fund the Pension Trust Fund with any general fund
resources, Benefits are paid to the participanis or beneficiaries based on a percentage of the
base pay when the person qualifies.

The contribution made for active and retired employees for the years ended September 30,
2015,2014, and 2013, were $971,894, $1,011,879, and $1,029,010, respectively.

DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN

General Information about the Pension Plan

Plan Description. The City contributes to the Public Employees' Retirement System of
Mississippi {PERS), a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan. PERS
provides retirement and disability benefits, annual cost-of-living adjustments, and death
benefits to plan members and beneficiaries. Plan provisions and the Board of Trustecs’
authority to determine contribution rates are established by Miss. Code Ann. Section 25-11-1
et seq., {1972, as ammended) and may be amended only by the Mississippi Legislature. PERS
issues a publicly available financial report that includes financial statements and required
supplementary information. That report may be obtained by writing to Public Employees'
Retirement  System of Mississippi, PERS  Building, 429 Mississippi  Street,
Jackson, MS 39201 or by calling (601) 359-3589 or 1-800-444-PERS.

Benefits provided. Membership in PERS is a condition of employment granted upon hiring
for qualifying employees and officials of the State of Mississippi, state universities,
community and junior colleges, and teachers and employees of the public school districts.
For those persons employed by political subdivisions and instrumentalities of the State of
Mississippi, membership is contingent upon approval of the entity’s participation in PERS
by the PERS’ Board of Trustees. If approved, membership for the entity’s employees is a
condition of employment and eligibility is granted to those who qualify upon hiring.
Participating members who are vested and retire at or after age 60 or those who retire
regardless of age with at least 30 years of creditable service {25 vears of creditable service
for employees who became members of PERS before July 1, 2011) are entitled, upon
application, to an annual retirement allowance payable monthly for life in an amount equal
to 2.0 percent of their average compensation for each year of creditable service up to and
including 30 years (25 years for those who became members of PERS before July [, 2011),
plus 2.5 percent for each additional year of creditable service with an actuarial reduction in
the benefil for each year of creditable scrvice below 30 years or the number of years in age
that the member is below 65, whichever is less. Average compensation is the average of
the employee’s earnings during the four highest compensated years of creditable service.
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NOTE 8:

CITY OF COLUMBUS, MISSISSIPPI
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN (CONTINUED)

Benefits vest upon completion of eight years of membership service (four years of
membership service for those who became members of PERS before July 1, 2007). PERS
also provides certain death and disability benefits. A Cost-of-Living Adjustment (COLA)
payment is made to eligible retirees and beneficiaries. The COLA is equal to 3.0 percent of
the annual retirement allowance for each full fiscal year of retirement up to the vear in
which the retired member reaches age 60 (55 for those who became members of PERS
before July 1, 2001), with 3.0 percent compounded for each fiscal year thereafter. Plan
provisions are established and may be amended only by the State of Mississippi
Legislature.

Contributions. PERS members are required to contribute 9.00% of their annual covercd
salary, and the City is required to contribute at an actuarially determined rate. The
employer’s rate as of September 30, 2015 was 15.75% of annual covered payroll. The
contribution requirements of PERS members and employers are established and may be
amended only by the State of Mississippi Legislature. The City's contributions to PERS for
the fiscal years ending September 30,2015, 2014 and 2013 were $1.458,235, $1,428.892
and $1,329,352, respectively, which equaled the required contributions for each year.

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and
Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions

At September 30, 20135, the City reported a liability of $22,769,212 for its proportionate
share of the net pension liability. The net pension liability was measured as of June 30,
2015, and the total pension liability used to calculate the net pension liability was
determined by an actuarial valuation as of that date. The City’s proportion of the net
pension liability was based on a projection of the City’s long-term share of contribution to
the pension plan relative to projected contributions of all participating entities, actuarially
determined. At June 30, 2015, the City’s proportion was 0.147297 percent.

For the year ended September 30, 20135, the City recognized pension expense of $656,960.

At September 30, 2015 the City reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred
inflows of resources related to pensions from the following sources:

RECE|ve,,
JUN 07 2018
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CITY OF COLUMBUS, MISSISSIPPI
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 8: DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN (CONTINULED)

Deferred Outflows

Deferred Inflows

of Resources of Resources

Differences between expected and

actual experience $ 528989
Net difference between projected and actual

earnings on pension plan investments 611,545
Changes of assumptions 1.961.489
Change in proportion percentage 59641
City contributions subsequent to the

measurement date 334,157

h] 2,824,635 671,186

$334,157 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from the
City’s contributions subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction
to the net pension liability in the year ended September 30, 2016. Other amounts reported
as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions will

be recognized in pension expense as follows:

Year ended September 30,

2016 $ 500,565
2017 500,565
2018 500,564
2019 317,598

h 1,819,292

Actuarial assumptions. The total pension liability in the June 30, 2015 actuarial valuation
was determined using the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included

in the measurement:

Inflation 3.0 percent
Salary 3.75 — 19.00 percent, including
increases inflation
Investment rate 7.75 percent, net of pension plan
of return investment expense, including
inflation
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NOTE 8:

CITY OF COLUMBUS, MISSISSIPPI
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN (CONTINUED)

Mortality rates were based on the RP-2014 Healthy Annuitant Blue Collar Table projected
with Scale BB to 2016, with males rates set forward one year,

The actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2015 valuation were based on the results of
an actuarial experience study for the period July 1, 2010 to June 30, 2014. The experience
report is dated May 4, 2015.

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a
log-normal distribution analysis in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates
of return (expected nominal returns, net of pension plan investment expense and the
assumed rate of inflation) are developed for each major asset ctass. These ranges ae
combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected
future real rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected
inflation. The target asset allocation and best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for
cach major asset class are summarized in the following table:

Target Long-Term Expected Real
Asset Class Allocation Rate of Retum
U.S. Broad 34 % 520 %
[nternational Equity 19 5.00
Emerging Markets Equity 8 545
Fixed Income 20 0.25
Real Assets 10 4.00
Private Equity 8 6.15
Cash 1 {0.50)
Total 100 %

Discount rate. The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.75
percent. The projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that plan
member contributions will be made at the current contribution rate (9.00%) and that
Employer contributions will be made at the current employer contribution rate (15.75%).
Based on those assumptions, the pension plan’s fiduciary net position was projected to be
available to make all projected future benefit payments of current plan members.
Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was applied to
all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total pension liability.

Sensitivity of the City's proportionate share of the net pension liability to changes in the
discount rate. The following presents the City’s proportionate share of the net pension
liability calculated using the discount rate of 7.75 percent, as well as what the City’s
proportionate share of the net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a
discount rate that is l-percentage-point lower (6.75 percent) or |-percentage-point higher
{8.75 percent) than the current rate:
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CITY OF COLUMBUS, MISSISSIPPI
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE §8: DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN (CONTINUED)
Current
125 Decrease Discount % Increase

(6.75%) Rate (7.75%) (8.75%)

City’s proportionate share of

the net pension liability 5 30,009,821 b 22,769,212 5 16,758,140

Pension plan fiduciary net position, Detailed information about the pension plan’s
fiduciary net position is available in the separately issued PERS financial report.

NOTE %: JOINT VENTURES AND OTHER

The City of Columbus and Lowndes County, Mississippi, are in several significant joint
ventures. The following is a brief description of each joint venture:

L. Name: Columbus/Lowndes Recreation Authority
Purpose: To provide recreation to Columbus and Lowndes County
Govermnment; A commission made up of five members appointed by the Mayor
and City Council (2) and Lowndes County Board of Supervisors
(2) and one member jointly approved by the Mayor and President
of the Board of Supervisors.
Financing: Taxes levied by both the City and County and certain fees.
Degree of Control
Over Budpgeting and
Financing: A budget must be submirted and approved by both the City
Coumcil and Board of Supervisors,
Il.  Name: Columbus/Lowndes County Library
Purpose: To operate a public library
Government: A board made up of ten members appointed by the Mayor and
City Council {5) and the Lowndes County Board of Supervisors
(5).
Financing: Taxes levied by both the City and County.
Degree of Control
Over Budgeting and
Financing: A budget is submitted to the City Council and Board of
Supervisors for review and approval. After reviewing the budget
the poverning bodies advise the Library Board how much they
will provide for the operation of the Library.
HI. Name: Columbus/Lowndes County Convention and Visitors Bureau
Purpaosc: To promote tourism within the City and County.
Government: A board made up of nine members appointed by the Mayor and

City Council (4); the Board of Supervisors for Lowndes County
{4); and the County and City jointly appoint one individual at
large.

44

WATKINS, WARD AND STAFFORD, PLLC
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS




CITY OF COLUMBUS, MISSISSIPPI]
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE9: JOINT VENTURES AND OTHER (CONTINUED)

Financing: A special two percent (2%) sales tax on certain restauranis and
lounges has been designated to be used to promote tourism in
Columbus and Lowndes County.
Degree of Control
Over Budgeting and
Financing: NA

The City also participates jointly with two surrounding counties and cities in providing partial
funding for the Golden Triangle Regional Airport. The City appoints one of the five
commissioners.

The City also is participating jointly with several surrounding cities and counties in the Golden
Triangle Regional Solid Waste Management Authority, Inc. The purpose of the Authority is to
provide a regional solid waste disposal facility. The City appoints ten of the thirty-eight board
members. The City, as well as other surrounding cities and counties, has guaranteed certain
debt of'the Authority.

The above joint ventures are considered as separate reporting enlities by the City’s
administration. Accordingly, the joint ventures have not been included in these financial
statements, except the funding of each has been recorded as expenditures,

The City participates with the County in the Columbus/Lowndes Airport located on Highway
69. The County reimburses the City for 50% of any expenses exceeding revenue.

The City and County also share in the operation of the E-911 salaries expense. The City,
through an interlocal agreement, assigns certain personnel, and provides office space and
utilities to the Metro Narcotics Unit.

NOTE 10: RISK MANAGEMENT

The City is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to. and destruction
of assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. The City carries
commercial insurance for these risks. Settled claims resulting from these insured risks have not
exceeded commercial insurance coverage in any of the past three fiscal years.

NOTE11: PROPERTY TAX

Property taxes attach an enforceable lien on the property as of January 1¥, Taxes are levied as
of January 1" and payable on or before February 1. The City taxes are collected and remitted
to the City by the Lowndes County Tax Collector.

The distribution of taxes to funds was made in accordance with prescribed tax levies, and
uncollected taxes were properly handled.

Delinquent taxes are not recorded as assets. RECE IVED
RECEIVED bree w2006
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NOTE 12:

NOTE 13:

NOTE 14:

CITY OF COLUMBUS, MISSISSIPPI
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

The City is a defendant in various lawsuits. Although the outcome of these lawsuits is not
presently determinable, it is the opinion of the City, after consultation with counsel, that
resolution of these matters will not have a material adverse effect on the financial condition of
the government.

In the normal course of operations, the City receives grant funds from various Federal and
State agencies. The grant programs are subject to audit by agents of the granting authority, the
purpose of which is to ensure compliance with conditions precedent to the granting of funds.
Any liability for reimbursement which may arise is not believed to be material.

PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTEMENT

A prior period adjustment is made on these financial statements to record a $19,958.803 and
$10,254,005 reduction in unrestricted net position of governmental and proprietary funds,
respectively, as required by Statement No. 68 of the Governmental Accounting Standards
Board which addresses accounting and financial reporting for pensions that are provided to the
employees of state and local governmental employers.

A summary of the adjustment is as follows:

Implementation of GASB 68:

Net pension liability (measurement date) ¥ {27,784,928)
Deferred inflows (measurement date) (3,170,020)
Deferred outflows {(measurement date) 341,145
Deferred outflows - contributions made during fiscal year 2015 400,995
Total prior period adjustment related to GASB 68 $ {30,212,808)

A prior period adjustment is also made to record $243,140 of capital equipment, net of
accumulated depreciation, erroneously disposed of in a prior year.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Events that occur after the Statement of Net Position date but before the financial statements
are available to be issued must be evaiuated for recognition or disclosure. The effects of
subsequent events that provide evidence about conditions that existed at the Statement of Net
Position date are recognized in the accompanying financial statements. Subsequent eventis
which provide evidence about conditions that existed after the Statement of Net Position date
require disclosure in the accompanying notes. Management of City of Columbus,
Mississippi evaluated the activity of the city through May 18, 2016, and determined that
there was no subsequent event that required disclosure in the notes to the financial
statements.
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CITY OF COLUMBLUS, MISSISSIPPE

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE -
BUDGET AND ACTUAL - GENERAL FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2015

REVENUES

Propernty Taxes

Licenses and Permuts
Intergovernmental Revenues
Charges for Services

Fines and Forfeits

Interest [ncome
Miscelianeous Revenues

Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES
Current:
General Government
Public Safety
Public Works
Cemetery
Culture and Recreation
Conservation, Urban and Economic Development
Intergovernmental -Garage
Agency Appropriations
Debt Service

Total Expenditures

Excess {Deficiency) of Revenues Over
(Under) Expendilures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (LISES

Other Financing Sourccs
Other Financing Uses

Nel Other Financing Sources (Uses)

This is reported an the cash hasis,

Actual Variance with
Original Final {Budgetary Final Budgef
Budget Budget Basix) Positive(Negative)
5 6,670.000 6,670,000 6,887,131 217.131
569,964 569.964 563,306 {6.658)
i0,581.794 10,581,794 11,414,708 832914
1,944,400 1,944,400 1.806.804 {137.596)
708,050 708.050 626433 (81,597
23,000 23,000 16,089 (3911)
172,030 172,050 233431 61,381
20,665,258 20,669,258 21,550,922 881,664
2,277,147 2277147 2,259,744 17,403
11,658,817 1,658,817 10,365,569 1,293,248
4,636,672 4,636,672 4,433,007 201,663
101,300 101,300 84,108 17,192
275,267 275267 327104 (51.837)
§65,223 £65,223 892 570 (27.347)
728,074 728,074 682 006 46,068
1,392,990 1,392,990 1,365,293 27,697
695,785 695,785 545,779 150,006
22,631,273 22,631,275 20,937,180 1,674,095
$ (192,017 (1,962,017 503,742 2,355,759
$ 1,996,410 1.996,410 835,993 (1160417
(334,936} (334,936) (7.875) 327,06}
$ 1,661,474 1.661,474 828,118 (833.356)
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CITY OF COLUMBUS, MISSISSIPF]
SCHEDULE OF THE CITY'S PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF THE NET PENSION LIABILITY
LAST 10 FISCAL YEARS*

2015
City's proportion of the net pension liability $  22,769.212
City's proportionate share of the nel pension liability 0.147297%
City's covered-employee payroll 5 9,202,286
City's proportionatc share of the net pension liahility
as a percentage of its covered-employee payroll 247.43%
Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total pension liability 61.70%

*The amounts presented for each fiscal year were determined as of the measurement date of June 30 of the fiscal
year presented

The seheduk is presented to illustrate the requirement to show infonmnation for 10 years. However, GASB 68 was
implemented in FYE %/30/15, and. until a full 10-year trend is compiled, the City has only presented
infarmation for the years in which information is available.
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CITY OF COLUMBUS, MISSISSIPPI
SCHEDULE OF THE CITY'S CONTRIBUTIONS
LAST 10 FISCAL YEARS

2015
Conlractually Tequired contribution b 1,449,360
Contribution in relation 10 the contractually required contribution 1,449,360
Contribution deficiency (excess) $
City's covered-employec payroll $ 9,202,286
Contnibutions as a percentage of covered-employvee payroll 15.73%

The schedule is presented Lo illustrate the requirement to show information for 10 years. However, GASB 68 was
implemented in FYT. 9/30/13, and, until a full 10-year trend is compiled, the City has only presented
information for the years in which information is available.
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OTHER SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION
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CITY OF COLUMBL'S, MISSISSIPPL
SCHEDULE OF BONDED INDEBTEDNESS - GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES
SEPTEMBER 30, 2015

Maturity Interest Balance Transattions Balance
Name and Date Date Percent 10/1/14 [ssued Redeemed 49/30/15
General Obligation and T1F Bonds
Governmental Activities:

Public Improvement Scries, 1996A 9/1/2013 5.00 $ 130,000 § 150000 % -
9/12016 5.00 160,000 160,000
lotal 310,000 - 150,000 160,000
Public Improvement Series, 199613 S/1/2013 540 60,000 60,000 -
912016 540 65,000 65,000
Total 125,000 - 60,000 63,000
Mississippi Development Bank, 2010 12/1/2014 2.00 455,000 455,000 -
12/1/20153 2.00 470,000 470.000
12/1/2016 225 480,000 480.000
12172017 2.50 495,000 495,000
127172018 2.50 510,000 510.000
12/2/2019 2.50 515,000 515.000
Thereafler 2.50 4,670,000 4,670,000
Total 7,595,000 - 455,000 7,140,000
General Obligation Mote, Series 2013 1712015 1.52 240,000 240,000 -
1112016 1.52 240,000 240,000
/172017 1.52 240,000 240,000
1112018 1.52 240,000 240.000
Taotal 960,000 - 240,000 720,000
Mississippi Development Bank, 2013 9/12015 4.55 120,000 120,000 -
9/12016 455 125,000 125,000
9/12017 4.55 130,000 130,000
97172018 455 140,000 140,000
WI2019 4 55 145,000 145,000
97172020 4.55 150,000 150,000
Thercaficr 4.55 1,475,000 1,475,000
Total 2.285.000 - 120,000 2,165,000
General Obligation Note, Seres 2014 2015 3.25 -
2016 325 -
2017 3.25 25,000 25,000
2018 328 100,000 100,000
2019 325 200,000 200,000
‘Thereafter 325 4,675,000 4,675.000
Touat 5,000,000 - - 5,000,000
Tax [ncrement Financing, Series 2015 2015 6.00 - -
2016 6.00 80,000 80,000
2017 6.00 80,000 80,000
2018 6.00 80,000 80,000
2019 6.00 83,000 85,000
Thereafier 7.125 1,905,000 1,905,000
Tolal - 2,230,000 - 2,230,000

Total General Obligation and TIF Bond Liability,
Governmental Activities $16,275,000 $ 2,230,000 % 1.025,000 $ 17,480,000
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SCHEDULE OF LONG-TERM NOTES - GO¥ERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES

Payce

Notes Payable
Governmental Activities:

Mississippt Developmenl Authority. [998

Total

Mississtppi Development Authonity, 1999
Tolal

Mississippi Development Authority, 2007

Total

Mississippt Development Authority, 2007

Total

Mississippi Development Authority, 2012

Total

Mississipp Development Authority, 2012

Total

Mississippi Development Authonty, 2009

Total
Regions Bank

Total

RECEWED
AUN .,

CITY OF COLUMBUS, MISSISSIPPI

SEPTEMBER 30, 2015

Maturily Interest Balance Balance
Date Percent 10/1/2014 Redeemed 9/30/2015
FYi5 4.95% b 9,758 9,758 % -

9,758 9,758
FYI1S 4 65% 4,903 4 905 -
4,905 4 603
FYls 2 00%, 31.059 31,059 -
FYie 2.00% 31,748 31748
FY17? 2.00% 32,389 32,389
FYI8 2.00% 20,187 20,187
115,383 31,059 84 324
FY15 2.00% 17,139 17,139 -
Fyle 2 00% 17,515 17.515
FY17 2.00% 17,868 17 868
FY18 2.00% 17,187 17,187
65,709 17,139 52,570
FYLS 2 00% 24,073 24.073 -
FYl6 2.00% 24,588 24,588
Fy17 2.00% 23,084 25,084
FYI18 2.00% 25,580 25,390
FY19 2.00% 26,107 26.107
Fy20 2.00% 26,634 26634
Thereafter 2.00% 12,006 32,006
184,082 24 073 160,009
FYIS 2.00% 22,877 22877 -
FYI6 2.00% 21,566 21,560
FYI7 2.00% 22,001 22,001
FYIR 200% 22,445 22,445
FYI9 200% 12,898 22,858
Fyz0 2.00% 23,360 11,360
Thereafier 2.00% 52,261 52,201
187,408 22.877 164,331
FY15 2.00% 4,508 4.508 -
FY1& 2.00% 4,624 4.624
FYI7 2.00% 4,719 4,718
FY 18 2.00% 4,812 4,812
FY19% 2.00% 4,909 46506
FYz0 2.00% 5,008 5.008
Thereafter 2 00% 50,202 50,202
78.780 4,506 74.274
FY13 209% 50,884 SOK84 -
FYI6 2.08% 51,958 51,958
FYI17 2.09% 35,247 35,247
138,089 50,884 87,205
Nizee v
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CITY OF COLUMBUS, MISSISSIFPI
SCHEDULE OF LONG-TERM NOTES - GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES

SEPTEMBER 30, 2015

Maturity Interest Balance Transactiuns Balance

Pavee Date Percent 10/172014 Issued Redeemed 9/30/2015
Regions Equipmem Finance Corp FYIS 3.20% 97,400 97,400 -
FYl6 330% 100,554 100,554
FYL7 320% 103,811 103,811
FY!{8 3.20% 107,173 107,173
FY18 3.20% 110,644 110,644
FY20 3.20% 114,227 114227
Thereafier 3.20% 1,095,152 1,095,152
Teatal 1,728,961 0 97,400 1,631,561
Regions Equipment Finance Corp FYI3 301% 140,153 389,239 140,133 189,239
FYI6 301% 191.84§ 191,841
FYI17 301% 197,681 197,681
FY 18 301% 203,699 203,699
FY19 3101% 209,500 209,900
FY20 301 216,290 216,290
Thercafter 3.01% 1,951,197 1951197
Total 3,110,761 389,239 140 153 3,359,847
Regions Equipment Finance Corp FY15 2.02% 119,384 119,284 -
FYi6 2.02% 103,298 103,298
FY17 2.02% 105,408 105 408
FYI8 2.02% 98,469 98,469
Total 426,559 0 119,384 107,173
Regons Equipment Finance Corp Y15 1.99% 6,084 6,084 -
FY16 1.99% 12,351 12,351
FY17 1.99% 12,599 12,599
FYI8 1.99% 12,852 12,852
FY19 1.99% 13110 13,110
Y20 199% 6,654 6,654
Tolal - 63,650 6,084 57,566
Regions Equipment Finance Corp FYI5 1 99% 8,162 8,162 -
Y16 1 99% 33,059 33,059
FYi? 1.99% 33723 31723
FYI18 1.99% 34.400 34,400
Y19 1.59% 35,091 35,091
Fy20 1.99% 26,778 26,778
Total - 171,213 8,162 163,051
Total Npites Payable, Governmental Activities 5 6054395 § 624,102 § 536,384 % 6,142,113
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CITY OF COLUMBUS, MISSISSIPPL

SCHEDULE OF BONDS AND NOTES PAYABLE - BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES

SEPTEMBER 30, 2015
Maturity Interest Balance Transactions Balance
Name and Date Date Percent 1/ 1/14 Issucd Redeemed 9/30/15
Business-type Activities
Water Division:
Special Obligation Bonds
2015 4.12% $ 1335000 $1,335000 % -
2016 4.12% 1,390,000 1 350,000
2017 4.12% 1,445,000 1445000
2018 4.12% 1,505,000 1,505,000
2019 4.12% 1,565,000 1,565,000
2020 4.12% 1,625,000 1,625000
2021-2028 4.12% 11,235,000 11,235000
Total 20,100,000 1,335.000 18,765,000
Other Long-term Debe
2015 34.5% 1,238.452 1,238,452 -
2016 34.5% 1,204,425 |.204.425
2017 3-4.5% 1231766 1,231,766
2018 3145% 1,259,732 259,732
2019 34.5% 724,045 724045
2020 34.5% 169,239 169,239
2020-2028 34.5% 604,075 604,075
Total 6,431,734 1,238,452 5,193,282
Elcetric Division:
Special Obligation Bonds
2013 2-4.5% 400,000 400,000 -
2016 2-4.53% 415,000 415,000
2017 24.5% 425,000 425000
2018 24.5% 440,000 440,000
2019 2435% 455000 455.000
2020 2-4.5% 470,000 470,000
20202029 245% 5,915,000 5,915.000
Toual 8,520,000 - 400,000 8.120,000
Taotal Bonds and Notes Pavable,
Business-type Activities $ 35,051,734 b $2.973452 $32,078,282
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CITY OF COLUMBLUS, MISSISSIPPIL

SCHEDULE OF SURETY BONDS FOR MUNICIPAL OFFICIALS

Name

Robert Smith

Gene A. Taylor

Joseph W. Mickens

Charles E. Box

Marty Turner

Kabir Karriem

William E. Gavin

Milton Rawle

Oscar Lewis T1[

All departments under
jurisdiction of Mayor
and City Council

Proprietary Fund —

Electric & Water
Department

SEPTEMBER 30, 2015

Position Company

Mayor CNA Surety
Councilman CNA Surety
Councilman CNA Surety
Councilman CNA Surety
Councilman CNA Surety
Councilman CNA Surety
Councilman CNA Surety
CFO CNA Surety
Chief of Police CNA Surety

Blanket Bond All
Employees

Blanket Bond
Covering All
Employees

S6

State Auto Property and
Insurance Company

State Auto Property and
Insurance Company

WATKINS, WARD AND STAFFORD, PLLC

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

Bond
$ 50,000
$100,000
$100,000
$100,000
$100,000
$100,000
$100,000
$100,000
$100,000

$100,000

$ 50,000




CITY OF COLUMBUS, MISSISSIPP1
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2015

Federal Agency/ Catalog of
Pass-through Entity/ Federal Domestic Federal
Program Title Assistance Number  Expenditures

L.S. Department af Defense
Direct Programs:

ARRA - Mississippi Environmental Infrastructure {Section 592) 12.124 & 756.816

Total U.S. Department of Defense 756,816

L.S Department of Justice

Direct Programs:
Public Safety Partnership and Community Policing Grants 16.710 43,352
Edward Byrne Memorial Justice Assistance Grant Program 16.738 14,311

Passed-through Mississippi Deparment of Public Safety:

ARRA - STOP Violence Against Women Formula Grants 16.588 16.754
Total passed-through Mississippi Department of Publie Safety 16,754
Total U.S. Department of Justice 74,417

U, S. Department of Transportation
Drirect Programs:

ARRA - Airport Improvemcut Program 20.106 258,588

Passcd-through Mississippi Deparment of Transportation:
ARRA - Highway Planning and Construction 20.205 163.163

Total passed-through Mississippi Department of Transportation 163,163

Passed-through Mississippi Deparment of Public Safety:

Alcohol Open Comlaiver Requirements 20,607 3,012
Total passed-through Mississippi Department of Public Safety 8,012
Total U, S. Department of Transportation 429,763

U.S. Environmental Protection Agency
Direct Programs:

ARRA - Brownficlds Assessment and Cleanup Cooperative Agreements 66.818 163.677
Total U.S. Environmental Protection Agency 163,677

L.S. Department of Homeland Security
Direct Programs:

Assistance to Firefighters Grant 97.067 8,000
Total U.S. Department of Homeland Security 3,000
Total Expenditures of Federal Awards $ 1,432,673

Notes to Schedule
(1) This schedule was prepared using the same basis of accounting and the same significant accounting policies, as
applicahle. used for the general purpose finaneial statements.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER
FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS
BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED
IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

HI:L"E' LA
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING
AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

The Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council
The City of Columbus
Columbus, Mississippi

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America
and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Goversment Auditing Standards issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental activities. the business-
type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Columbus,
Mississippi, as of and for the year ended September 30, 2015, and the related notes to the financial statements,
which collectively comprise the City of Columbus, Mississippi®s basic financial statements and have issued our
report thereon dated May 18, 2016.

Internal Contrel over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the City of Columbus,
Mississippi’s internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the City of Columbus, Mississippi’s internal
control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the City of Columbus, Mississippi’s
internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct,
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal
control such that there is a reasonabie possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements
will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough
to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section
and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal contro} that might be material weaknesses or
significant deficiencies and therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were not
identified. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we
consider to be material weaknesses. We did identify a deficiency in internal control, described in the
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs as Finding 2015-001, that we consider to be a significant
deficiency.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City of Columbus, Mississippi’s financial statements
are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on
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the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those
provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of
our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under
Government Auditing Standards.

City of City of Celumbus, Mississippi’s Response to Findings

City of Columbus, Mississippi’s response to the findings identified in our audit is described in the accompanying
schedule of findings and questioned costs. City of Columbus, Mississippi’s response was not subjected to the
auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion on it.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control or on
compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing
Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not
suitable for any other purpose.

Columbus, Mississippi

May 18, 2016 watins Ward and wﬂﬂ'u Pue

60
WATKINS, WARD AND STAFFORD, PLLC
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS



INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR PROGRAM
AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY OMB
CIRCULAR A-133
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR PROGRAM
AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY OMB CIRCULAR A-133

The Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council
The City of Columbus
Columbus, Mississippi

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

We have audited City of Columbus, Mississippi’s compliance with the types of compliance requirements
described in the OMB Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material effect on each
of City of Columbus, Mississippi’s major ftederal programs for the year ended September 30, 2015. City of
Columbus, Mississippi’s major federal programs are identified in the summary of auditors’ results section of the
accompanying sehedule of findings and questioned costs.

Management’s Responsibility

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants
applicable to its federal programs.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of City of Columbus, Mississippi’s major
federal programs based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. We conducted our
audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller
General of the United States; and OMB Circular A-133, dudits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit
Organizations. Those standards and OMB Circular A-133 require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above
that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on
a test basis, evidence about City of Columbus, Mississippi’s compliance with those requirements and performing
such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances,

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major federal
program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of City of Columbus, Mississippi’s
compliance.

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

In our opinion, City of Columbus, Mississippi complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal programs
for the year ended September 30, 2015.

Report on Internal Control over Compliance

Management of City of Columbus, Mississippi is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal
control over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above, [n planning and performing
our audit of compliance, we considered City of Columbus, Mississippi’s internal control over compliance with the
types of requirements that could have a direct and material effect on each major federal program to determine the
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auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
compliance for each major federal program and to test and report on internal contrel over compliance in
accordance with OMB Circular A-133, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of City of
Columbus, Mississippi’s internal control over compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over compliance
does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent,
or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely
basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in
internal control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a
type of compliance requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely
basis. A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of
deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of eompliance requirement of a federal program that
is less severe than a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit
attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph
of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal contro] over compliance that might be
material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over
compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not
been identified.

The purpose of this report on internal controf over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing of
internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of OMB Circular A-133,
Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

Columbus, Mississippi

May 18, 2016 watkins Ward and &%ﬂ;[, Pue
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON COMPLIANCE
WITH STATE LAWS AND REGULATIONS
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON COMPLIANCE
WITH STATE LAWS AND REGULATIONS

The Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council
The City of Columbus
Columbus, Mississippi

We have audited the financial statements of governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major
fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of City of Columbus, Mississippi, as of and for the year
ended September 30, 2015, which collectively comprise the City of Columbus, Mississippi's basic financial
statements and have issued our report thereon dated May 18, 2016. We conducted our audit in accordance
with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the procedures prescribed by
the State Auditor, and accordingly, included such tests of the accounting records and such other auditing
procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances.

As required by the state legal compliance audit program prescribed by the Office of the State Auditor, we
have also performed procedures to test compliance with certain state laws and regulations. Qur procedures
were substantially less in scope than an audit, the objective of which is the expression of an opinion on the
City’s compliance with these requirements. Accordingly, we do not express such an opinion.

The results of procedures performed to test compliance with certain other state laws and regulations and our
audit of the financial statements disclosed the following instances of noncompliance with state laws and
regulations. Qur findings and recommendations and your responses are as follows:

Findings:
In violation of Mississippi Code Section 31-7-13, there was an instance where the City did not receive and

document written quotes for a purchase greater than $5,000 but less than $50,000.

In violation of Mississippi Code Section 25-3-41, there were instances where a City officer or employee did
not repay advanced money not used for travel related expenses within the first five working days after the
end of the month in which the official travel occurred.

Recommendations:

To comply with applicable state statutes:

The City should ensure that state purchasing laws are followed for all purchases in excess of $5,000. The
person or persons in charge of purchasing for each department should be responsible for assuring the City is
in compliance with all state purchasing laws.
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The City should ensure that the travel reimbursement form prescribed by the Department of Finance and
Administration, or a similar form, is completed and submitted as soon as reasonably possible after official
travel is completed by City employees or officials. Every effort should be made to collect advanced money
owed to the City within the mandated time.

Response:
The City Council has been made aware of these violations of state statutes,
This report is intended for the information of the City Council, management and Mississippi State Auditor’s

office, and is not intended to be, and should not be, used by anyone other than these specified parties.
However, this report is a matter of public record and its distribution is not limited.

Columbus, Mississippi

Wotkins Ward and Shffad, Pue
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CITY OF COLUMBUS, MISSISSIPPI]
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2015

Section 1: Summary of Auditors’ Results:

Financial Statements

1. Type of auditor’s report issued on the financial statements: Unmodified
2. Material noncompliance relating to the financial statements? No

3. Internal control over financial reporting:

a. Material weakness{es} identified? No
b.  Significant deficiencies identified that are not considered to be
material weaknesses? Yes

Federal Awards:

4, Type of auditors’ report issued on compliance for major federal
programs: Unmodified

5. Internal control over major programs:

a. Material weakness{es) identitied? No
b.  Significant deficiencies identified that are not considered to be
material weaknesses? None reported

6. Any audit finding(s) reported as required by Section 510{(a) of
Circular A-1337 No

7. Federal programs identified as major programs:

a.  Mississippi Environumental Infrastructure (Section 592) — CFDA # 12,124

8. The dollar threshold used to distinguish between Type A and Type
B programs: $300,000

9.  Auditee qualified as a low-tisk auditee? Yes

Section 2: Findings Relating to the Financial Statements

Significant Deficiencies Not Considered to be Material Weaknesses

2015-0601 Statement of Condition { Repeat of Prior Year Finding)
The City of Celumbus does not maintain adequate records for fixed assets. There is not a
subsidiary ledger. The City does not perform an annual physical inventory. The City also
does not maintain property control tags.
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Section 3:

CITY OF COLUMBUS, MISSISSIPPI
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2015

Criteria
The fixed asset subsidiary ledger of fixed assets is the responsibility of the City of Columbus,
Mississippi. Therefore, the City should be maintaining this ledger.

Recommendation

The City of Columbus needs to implement a subsidiary ledger for fixed assets. An annual
physical inventory needs to be performed. All [ixed assets need to be imarked with a property
control tag.

Response
The City of Columbus is currently working on implementing a fixed asset subsidiary ledger.

Findings and Questioned Costs for Federal Awards

No findings to report.
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MANAGEMENT REPORT

The Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council
The City of Columbus
Columbus, Mississippi

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each
major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of City of Columbus, Mississippi, as of and for
the year ended September 30, 2015, which collectively comprise the City of Columbus, Mississippi’s
basic financial statements and have issued our report thereon dated May 18, 2016. We conducted our
audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Governmental Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States.

During the course of our examination, a matter was detected which requires the attention of management.
This matter does not have a material effect on the general purpase financial statements. Any findings and
recommendations of the prior year have been corrected by management unless it is specifically stated
otherwise in the following finding and recommendation. Our finding and recommendation are as follows:

CURRENT YEAR FINDINGS:
ADMINISTRATIVE
I. Finding: (Repeat of Prior Year Finding)

The value of the personal use of an automaobile by employees is not being computed and added to
their income (W-2 earnings}.

Recommendation:

The secretary-treasurer’s office should start determining the personal use value for the city
owned vehicles and add this value to the users W-2 at the end of the calendar year and pay the
applicable payroll taxes.

NiTe, _

70
WATKINS, WARD AND STAFFORD, PLLC JUN 07 2018
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS



The finding in this report came to our attention as a result of the audit procedures and tests that we
applied. Other than the finding mentioned above and in the preceding letter, the City complied with state
laws and regulations for the items tested. For those items not tested, nothing came to our attention that
would lead us to believe that the City had not complied with state laws and regulations other than those
laws and regulations for which we noted violations in our testing referred to above.

This report is intended for the information of the City Council and the management of the City.
However, this report is a matter of public record, and its distribution is not limited.

Columbus, Mississippi

May 18, 2016 watins Ward and WGJ, ue
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